
Adopted Minutes 
Spanish Fork City Planning Commission Meeting 

May 6, 2009 
 
 
Commission Members Present:  Chairman Del Robins, Sherman Huff, Shane 
Marshall, Michael Christianson, Dave Lewis, Dave Stroud. 
 
Staff Present:  Dave Anderson, Planning Director; Shelley Hendrickson, Planning 
Secretary; Chris Thompson, Design Engineer; Kirk Nord, Assistant City Attorney. 
 
Citizens Present:  Kari Barber, Mark S. Greenwood, Warren A. Peterson, illegible 
name, illegible name, illegible name, Nolo Swenson, Tom Galovich, Mark Watkins, 
Adam Stone, Geoff Eppley, Dallas Davis, John Watkins. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Robins called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   
 
 
PRELIMINARY ACTIVITIES 
 

Pledge 
 
Commissioner Marshall led the pledge of allegiance. 
 

Adoption of Minutes:  April 1, 2009 
 
Commissioner Huff moved to approve the minutes of April 1, 2009.  Commissioner 
Lewis seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
 
STAFF REPORTS 
 
Applicant:  Warren Peterson 
General Plan: Residential 5.5 to 8 units per acre existing, Residential 9 to 12 units 
per acre proposed    
Zoning:  R-1-6 existing, R-3 proposed 
Location:  the General Plan Amendment includes the blocks between 200 East and 
300 East, 200 North and 400 North and the block bounded by 200 East, 100 North, 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 1 of 8     05-06-09 
 



300 East and Center Street; the Zoning Map Amendment is for the property located 
at 245 North 300 East. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the proposal was originally on the agenda as a Public 
Hearing item but changed to a Staff Report agenda item.  He said the reason for the 
change was due to the volume of public interest involving the proposal.  He 
explained that a meeting was held prior to the Planning Commission’s meeting 
where citizens were given a chance to speak with the applicant, ask questions, and 
air their concerns.  Mr. Anderson explained that the proposal was to change the 
General Plan and the Zoning of the property at 245 North 300 East.  The impetus for 
changing the General Plan was the proposed development.  He said the City staff 
did not want to make a practice of changing the General Plan to accommodate 
projects but are trying to look at the bigger picture for now with regard to properties 
on each side of 300 East.  He said he felt that there was merit, given the 
characteristics of 300 East, to make it the delineator between the General Plan 
designation of 5.5-8 units per acre and 9-12 units per acre. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked how many acres were being affected by the General 
Plan change.  Mr. Anderson said approximately 10 acres. 
 
Dr. Warren Peterson explained to the Commission what he was proposing to build 
on the property and displayed renderings on the overhead projector. 
 
Adam Stone said he felt the renderings did not fit the neighborhood and that a 
community garden or other things might work better than a residential use. 
 
John Watkins expressed concern with the R-3 zone.  
 
Lynn Ottison expressed that she felt the public notice was vague and was not 
explanatory enough.  She said she had knocked on every door in the neighborhood 
and talked to every homeowner and said they all had the same concern, which was 
the density.  She said she had obtained signatures against the proposal. 
 
Commissioner Marshall expressed that he felt a General Plan request should be  
looked at on its own merit separate from any other request. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that a project usually is the impetus for a General Plan 
change and discussion was held regarding how to handle General Plan Amendment 
changes and whether or not the City should initiate changes. 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 2 of 8     05-06-09 
 



Commissioner Stroud moved to open into public hearing.  Commissioner Lewis 
seconded and the motion passed at 7:30 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Proposed Amendments to Title 15, Permitted and Conditional Uses 
Applicant:  Spanish Fork City 
General Plan:  City wide 
Zoning:  City wide 
Location:  City wide 
 
Mr. Anderson asked the Commission to continue this item until the Commission’s 
next meeting. 
 
Commissioner Lewis moved to continue the Proposed Amendments to Title 15, 
Permitted and Conditional Uses.  Commissioner Marshall seconded and the motion  
passed all in favor. 
 
Silver Sage Business Park Preliminary Plat Amendment 
Applicant:  Kent Barber 
General Plan:  Light Industrial 
Zoning:  Light Industrial 
Location:  approximately 1700 North Chappel Drive 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the City Council approved a Final Plat for this project 
one year ago.  The applicant was proposing to scale back the development and the 
proposed lots did meet the City requirements in the I-1 zone.  He said staff did not 
see any reason not to approve the amendment. 
 
Chairman Robins opened for public comment. 
 
Randy Giboney 
Mr. Giboney explained that he was the owner of Western Botanicals and that his 
business was located adjacent to the proposal and asked for more information on 
what would be constructed. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the first phase would involve two one-acre parcels 
coming from Chappel Drive, provided that the plat was recorded.  He said that the 
applicant would need to go through a Site Plan review process and until a Site Plan 
was submitted the City was not aware of what would be built there. 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 3 of 8     05-06-09 
 



Mr. Giboney explained that his business was currently operating and that he had a 
problem with the debris and mess on the Barber Welding site.  He explained that the 
area looked like the City dump.  He explained the condition of the property (old cars, 
pallets that are accumulating in piles, iron).  He said so much debris had 
accumulated that there was no longer any parking.  He said there was a level of 
maintenance not being taken care of and that it was an avenue for pests. 
 
Mr. Anderson said the issues had been discussed with the applicant and he felt that 
one of the effective ways to remedy the situation was with a development approval.  
He agreed that there were things that needed to be fixed.  Chairman Robins asked if 
a development agreement could address nuisances.  Mr. Anderson said yes and that 
it could be a very effective tool. 
 
Rob Harding 
Mr. Harding said part of the reason for the expansion was so that they could have 
room to store and clean up the site but that it was a different property owner that 
owned the material to the east. 
 
Discussion was held regarding a remedy for nuisances involving new development 
and development agreements. 
 
Chairman Robins closed public hearing comments. 
 
Commissioner Marshall moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
Silver Sage Business Park Preliminary Plat Amendment subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. That the Final Plat submittal provide the required 20-foot easement along 
Chappel Drive. 

2. That the applicant show any other City easements on the Final Plat. 
3. That the Final Plat include all three lots. 

 
Commissioner Huff seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call vote. 
 
Commissioner Stroud moved to leave public hearing and move to item 4.a on the 
agenda.  Commissioner Lewis seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Spanish Fork West Zoning Map Amendment 
Applicant:  LDS Church 
General Plan:  Residential .5 to 1.5 units per acre 
Zoning:  Rural Residential existing, R-1-20 proposed 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 4 of 8     05-06-09 
 



Location:  approximately 1900 West 900 South 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the zoning needed to be changed in order to 
accommodate a meeting house for the respective property owner, the LDS Church.  
He said he felt the R-1-20 zoning could hypothetically raise the bar for any 
developers in the area. 
 
Discussion was held regarding what the residential zones were in the area.  
Commissioner Marshall excused himself from the discussion. 
 
Lana Creer-Harris expressed her concern with anything happening in the Leland 
area.  She said she would like the highest lot size available in order to maintain open 
space and would like the Commission to stick with the R-1-20. 
 
Reed Swenson said he agreed with Ms. Creer-Harris’s comments and would like the 
zone to be R-1-20. 
 
Commissioner Lewis moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
Spanish Fork West Stake Zoning Map Amendment changing the zone R-R to R-1-
20.  Commissioner Stroud seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call 
vote.  Commissioner Marshall abstained. 
 
Commissioner Lewis moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
Spanish Fork West Stake Preliminary Plat subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the applicant provide a letter from the Utah Department of 
Transportation identifying their approval of access onto 900 South. 

2. That the applicant rectifies any discrepancies between the plat and the 
approved Site Plan. 

3. That the applicant address the Power Department’s concerns prior to 
recordation of the plat. 

 
Commissioner Huff seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call vote.  
Commissioner Marshall abstained. 
 
In-Fill Overlay 
Applicant:  Spanish Fork City 
General Plan:  City wide 
Zoning:  City wide 
Location:  City wide 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 5 of 8     05-06-09 
 



* Commissioner Christianson arrived at 7:59 p.m 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the proposed changes were to no longer allow multi-
family units in the R-1-6 zoning district. 
 
Discussion was held regarding lot size as part of the review process for an in-fill 
overlay project and the density being regulated by the general plan.   
 
Commissioner Christianson asked about the setback verbage change. 
 
Chairman Robins opened for public comment.  There was none. 
 
Discussion was held regarding the R-1-6 zone being very large and the Commission 
not feeling comfortable with the change.  Mr. Anderson explained that residents had 
told the City Council that they felt that the R-1-6 zone was to promote single-family 
residence and not multi-family housing. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to table the In-Fill Overlay Zoning Text Amendment 
along with the public hearing, for one month.  Commissioner Christianson seconded 
and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Urban Village Zone 
Applicant:  Spanish Fork City 
General Plan: City wide 
Zoning: City wide 
Location: City wide 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that the Urban Village Zone was the City’s mixed use zoning 
district allowing both residential and non-residential uses.  He said he felt mixed use 
developments were the most in vogue discussion amongst planners.  He said the 
City’s Urban Village Zone had been on the books for 6-7 years and that the only 
property the City had in this zoning designation would not develop in the near future.  
He explained the changes (see attached). 
 
Discussion was held regarding this zone being a walkable community and removing 
the option for a drive-thru.  
 
Cameron Gunter expressed his concern about a bank not being able to have a drive-
thru or a fast food restaurant not having a drive-thru (on a corner) if you do a 
combination c-store.  He said that he felt it should be kept as a conditional use and 
to not completely remove drive-thrus. 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 6 of 8     05-06-09 
 



 
Discussion was held regarding 20 percent more residential, arterial frontage or 
access, whether or not the Planning Commission would see a Site Plan, and 
development agreements.  
 
Commissioner Lewis moved to recommend to the City Council  approval of the 
Proposed Amendments to Title 15, Urban Village Zone striking out the word ‘may’ for 
the word ‘will’ in H.3.  Commissioner Marshall seconded and the motion passed all 
in favor by a roll call vote. 
 
Master Planned Development 
Applicant:  Spanish Fork City 
General Plan: City wide 
Zoning: City wide 
Location: City wide 
 
Mr. Anderson asked the Commission to examine some siding examples.  He 
explained the changes (see attachment).   
 
Chairman Robins opened public comment.  There was none. 
 
Commissioner Christianson moved to recommend that the City Council approve the 
Proposed Amendments to Title 15, Master Planned Development.  Commissioner 
Lewis seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Public Facilities Map Amendment 
Applicant:  Spanish Fork City 
General Plan:  City wide 
Zoning:  City wide 
Location:  City wide 
 
Mr. Anderson explained the proposed changes (See Attached). 
 
Chairman Robins opened for public comment.  There was none. 
 
Discussion was held regarding Nebo School District properties and Charter school 
properties being included in the change. 
 
Commissioner Huff said it seemed unreal to him to change the ALA site to a 
government-owned facility when it was privately owned. 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 7 of 8     05-06-09 
 



Discussion was held regarding the ALA and changing the zone. 
 
Commissioner Huff moved to continue the Public Facilities Map Amendments.  
Commissioner Stroud seconded and the motion passed all in favor. 
 
Commissioner Huff moved to close public hearing.  Commissioner Lewis seconded 
and the motion passed all in favor at 9:09 p.m. 
 
OTHER DISCUSSION 
 
Discussion on Planning Commission work program. 
 
There was none. 
 
White Rail Master Planned Development concept plan presentation. 
 
Mr. Anderson explained that Mr. Steve Maddox had been working on a single family 
detached development for several years but that it was a very cumbersome 
development due to SR 51, the railroad tracks, the high pressure gas line and 
Expressway Lane.  He explained that the purpose of the discussion was to get direct 
feedback. 
 
Mr. Maddox explained what was originally proposed and what he was now proposing 
which was single-family detached housing.   He explained that he did not anticipate 
this project selling out in a six month time frame.  He said he would form an HOA to 
control aesthetic issues in the development. 
 
Discussion was held regarding Expressway Lane, who would be funding the road 
and whether or not the group homes required a land buffer.   
 
Discussion was held regarding the density and promoting home ownership. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Lewis seconded and the 
motion passed all in favor at 9:32 p.m. 
 
Adopted:   
      _________________________________ 
      Shelley Hendrickson, Planning Secretary  
     

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 8 of 8     05-06-09 
 


